
 

Parks and Recreation Commission 
 

Regular Meeting 
 
 

Agenda 

Wednesday, November 12, 2025 
6:30 PM 

Elk River City Hall 

 
▪ Regular meeting in Council Chambers 

  
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

3. CONSIDER AGENDA  

4. CONSIDER MINUTES  

 4.1 10-08-2025 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 

5. OPEN FORUM 
An opportunity to provide comments and feedback regarding items not on the agenda. Information provided in Open Forum 
will not be discussed at this meeting; rather, the information will be referred to staff and/or scheduled for discussion at a 
future meeting. 

6. ACTION ITEMS  

 6.1 Perkins Acres - Park Dedication 

 6.2 2026 Commission Meeting Dates 

 6.3 Bleachers Purchase for Plants & Things Athletic Complex 

 6.4 E-bike and Electric Device Ordinance 

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 7.1 Safety at Athletic Complexes 

 7.2 Park Usage Survey Results 

8. PARKS AND RECREATION MANAGER UPDATE  

 8.1 Parks and Recreation Manager Update 

9. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

10. MOTION TO ADJOURN  

 

Page 1 of 34



Meeting of the Parks and Recreation 
Commission 

Held at the Elk River City Hall 
Wednesday, October 8, 2025 

Members Present: Chair Anderson, Commissioners Goodwin, Stewart, Fermoyle, and Commissioner 
Loidolt (left at 8:35p.m.) 

Members Absent: Commissioner Varty (left at 8:01p.m.), Commissioner Niziolek (arrived at 7:36 
p.m. and left at 8:19 p.m.)

Staff Present: Assistant City Administrator/Business Services Director Joe Stremcha, Parks and 
Recreation Manager Jeff Shelby, and Senior Administrative Assistant Dawn Larson 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the meeting was called to order at 06:30 PM.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

3. CONSIDER AGENDA
Moved by Commissioner Loidolt and seconded by Commissioner Varty to approve the
October 8, 2025, agenda. Motion carried 5-0.

4. CONSIDER MINUTES

4.1 09-10-2025 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 

Moved by Commissioner Fermoyle and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to approve 
September 10, 2025, Parks and Recreation Commission minutes. Motion carried 5-0.  

5. OPEN FORUM

6. PRESENTATIONS, AWARDS, AND RECOGNITION

6.1 Track and Field Day For Dogs at Lion John Weicht Park 

Mr. Shelby presented his report. Zoe Johnson, 18450 Olson St. NW Elk River was present and gave a 
summary of her plan to host a track and field day for dogs at Lion John Weicht Park. She shared that 
she volunteers with Ruff Start and wants to bring together her passion for fostering dogs and the need 
to complete a class project into one event. This event will raise awareness for fostering dogs. The goal 
would be to raise money for Ruff Start so she will have donation boxes available for people to donate. 
She said she will set up hurdles, high jumps, and long jumps for people to do whenever they show up. It 
is mostly for the foster families and their dogs, but other people from the public can attend. They will 
have snacks and treats. The dogs will always have to be on a leash for safety. They will also have medals 
for the dogs. Commissioner Fermoyle asked what time the event would be. Ms. Johnson said from 11 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Commissioner Varty asked how many people Ms. Johnson anticipated showing up. She
said about 50 at the most. Ms. Johnson also said Ruff Start will advertise to their current foster families,
and she will advertise on her neighborhood Facebook page and send out information in school and

DRAFT

Page 2 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 2 of 10 

through friends. Chair Anderson asked if she would be able to come back and share with the 
Commission how it goes. She said she would love to. Mr. Stremcha asked Ms. Johnson to share why she 
chose Lions Park. She said because it is close to her house and has shelters for setting up and 
protecting them from rain.  
  
Commissioner Loidolt asked if she would do it annually. She said no because she would be going off to 
college. Commissioner Goodwin suggested that if she writes it up thoroughly, maybe they could keep 
the legacy going. 
  
Moved by Commissioner Goodwin and seconded by Commissioner Varty to approve the 
track and field day for dogs at Lions John Weicht Park on Sunday October 26th, 2025.  
Motion carried 5-0.  

7. ACTION ITEMS 
  

 7.1 2026 Rental Fees 
 
   

Mr. Shelby presented his report. He reviewed the attachments. He pointed out that the change in cost 
is only on the initial rental fee, not on the additional rental hours.  
  
Moved by Commissioner Loidolt and seconded by Commissioner Fermoyle to 
recommend to City Council to set shelter/pavilion rental fees for 2026 as presented.  
Motion carried 5-0.  

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  

 8.1 Electric Bicycles and Devices — Trail Usage 
 
 Mr. Shelby presented his report and slideshow. Mr. Shelby said this issue is quickly evolving and he 

thinks that the goal of the discussion is how to regulate or limit some of these devices. From the 
research that he and his staff have done there has been little uniformity and continuity in terms of the 
vocabulary used, as well as enforcement and regulation. What he has put together for tonight is 
background information. He thinks they need to discuss the possibility of an ordinance to regulate or 
limit some of these devices.  
  
Mr. Shelby said he would like to identify the pieces that the commission wants included and then he 
would take that to the Police Department and the City Attorney for their input and to make sure it 
matches the city’s ordinance language, returning to next month’s commission meeting for action. 
  
He reviewed the definitions of what electric bikes are via his slideshow presentation. He followed up by 
showing photos of the e-bikes, pointing out how hard it is to distinguish the differences. He said he also 
thinks that if they are modified in any way then they are not definable under these class definitions and 
then they are not legal. Then he went onto the Electric Personal Assisted Mobility devices and 
motorized foot scooters.  
  
Mr. Shelby pointed out that some cities have grouped them together. We are trying to go by the state 
statutes. He pointed out how the graphics could help with showing the difference between what is 
allowed on the trails and what isn’t. He then reviewed the potential recommendations.  
  

DRAFT

Page 3 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 3 of 10 

Chair Anderson said this is a complex issue. He shared that he has been spending a lot of time on our 
paved trails particularly out at Woodland Trails Regional Park and e-motorcycles which are e-bikes are 
out of control. Chair Anderson shared that he got a call and a text from an individual as well. He said 
that there are places out on the trails and in the park where they are “laying rubber” and they have a 
lot of power.  
  
He said that he was heading out in a city truck to place chips on the trail, and he had a bike driving 
behind him doing wheelies and trying to get by. Chair Anderson reviewed his handout listing the several 
types of motorized bikes. He thinks that they should have a discussion regarding what they think of 
each of these devices and whether they want to allow them onto the paved and dirt trails. Chair 
Anderson said in addition to driving on the paved trails at Woodland Trails there have been a couple of 
individuals that have caused extensive damage to the dirt trails. He provided a photo of trail damage 
along with the list of bikes that he handed out. He asked the Commissioners to discuss what they think 
of each of the devices and whether they want to allow them or not on the paved, green, or dirt trails. 
  
Chair Anderson said that he invited Derek Burchill,14481 Idone St. NW Ramsey, MN, the trail steward 
at Hillside Mountain Bike Park, to speak on behalf of damage occurring at Hillside Park with e-bikes. Mr. 
Burchill said that he has been dealing with similar issues as Chair Anderson with what he calls e-motos. 
He explained that burning rubber is spraying dirt up behind the bike. He said that Hillside Park has a lot 
of sharp corners, and it would be easy to collide with other riders and trees. When he sees riders 
doing this, he tries to inform them that there are no motorized vehicles allowed on the trails. MORCs 
(Minnesota Off-Road Cyclists) position is the same as the state but Mr. Burchill’s opinion is that only 
class 1 bikes should be allowed on the trails because the other classes are too fast. He tells people out 
there that only class 1 bikes are allowed.  
  
Mr. Burchill said a couple of days ago there was a group of six kids flying through the trails and no one 
looked over 15. He said that the trails are used by all ages, and he doesn’t want to see someone get 
hurt. 
  
Chair Anderson said that they have little kids on little kid bikes at Woodland Trails Regional Park. He 
said the people on e-motos are basically using pedestrians as an obstacle course. He shared that he read 
in the paper that the cops were out there after at least one incident where they had to get someone 
after they got hurt. Chair Anderson asked staff what the city’s investment in Hillside was, he thinks it 
was $100,000. He said it was a very big investment in that resource, it is serving the community well 
and it is now being damaged by what he and Mr. Burchill think is unauthorized use.  
  
Chair Anderson wants to hear from the rest of the group what they think as well as go through the list 
of what they think should be in and what should be out. They won’t be talking about sidewalks or 
streets since those are not something for them to be concerned about.  
  
Mr. Burchill said he has received a lot of concerns about safety from users of the bike trails at Hillside. 
He also shared that trail management crews are concerned about safety when they are working at the 
park.  
  
Mr. Shelby asked Mr. Burchill to clarify what he means when he says e-motos. He said that they are the 
ones that don’t have pedals. He said some of the bikes he sees do have pedals on them, but he thinks 
the bikes have been modified, and the pedals aren’t functional and won’t move. Mr. Burchill said he does 
see full-faced helmets on most people or even motorcycle helmets. 
  

DRAFT

Page 4 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 4 of 10 

Commissioner Goodwin said she called Chair Anderson last week because she was at Woodland Trails 
Regional Park with her kids and two middle schoolers were riding e-motos around and it made her 
concerned that they would not see her kids on the trails. She also said she is concerned about the 
damage to the trails and that there is a lot of investment from the City of Elk River and volunteers. She 
thinks that teenagers using these don’t have the wisdom to make good choices all the time. At the same 
time, she does see the benefit for those riding them slower that are using them to get back into being 
active and have mobility issues, etc. She said that she thinks if we have an ordinance then we must have 
an enforcement period.  
  
Chair Anderson said he thinks that there is a big education piece. Commissioner Stewart said that 
whatever they decide today they need to get the message out clearly and then have an enforcement 
period, so people learn what is permitted and what is not. 
  
Commissioner Stewart said that they have to have a living document that they can change as things are 
constantly changing with these bikes. He thinks that class three bikes are too fast and shouldn’t be 
allowed on trails. He doesn’t think that they can do anything about class two since they could always 
just pedal it, so they should allow one and two and ban the third one. He doesn’t think that there are 
any other motorized things that should be allowed on the trails. 
  
Mr. Burchill said that a lot of the kids he stops on the trails think that if the bike they are riding is 
electric and not gas that is okay. 
  
Commissioner Varty said that she agrees and that a class three bike is too fast and an accident is waiting 
to happen. Classes one and two are fine. Commissioner Fermoyle said she doesn’t have anything else to 
add.  
  
Chair Anderson said that EPAMD’s (Electric Personal Assistance Mobility Devices) such as segways, 
hoverboards, and electric skateboards have to be allowed. Commissioner Loidolt said one thing he is 
concerned about is that since the GNT runs through Sherburne County if we aren’t consistent then 
what are we going to do once the people get to the boundary of our portion of the trail? He said he is 
not for the bikes or against them, but he wants to get in front of the issue. He said if there is a speed 
limit of 20 miles per hour set up how will it be enforced? With a radar gun? 
  
Commissioner Goodwin said maybe enforcement is through education such as signs because a class 
three bike can slow down to 20 mph if required to do so. Mr. Shelby said that the Sherburne County 
Advisory Board didn’t want to prevent people who are using them responsibly from continuing to do 
so. He also thinks they wanted to maintain accessibility and determine how they would limit and 
regulate what bikes can be on the trails in a reasonable way that makes sense. They thought that 
addressing speed was the way to go. Mr. Shelby said the City of Elk River communications department 
could put together a robust education campaign this winter to help people understand what they can 
and can’t do.  
  
Chair Anderson said that we might have to put something together on an emergency basis because they 
are out of control. He said if he had his way he would say the trails are non-motorized, but he said that 
the world is changing. He said that he has a lot of friends that have e-bikes, otherwise they wouldn’t be 
biking. They bike all over the state and it is giving them extended time in their life to do leisurely 
activities. 
  
Chair Anderson said that he thinks that class 3 e-bikes are too powerful and too fast, but he doesn’t 

DRAFT

Page 5 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 5 of 10 

know how to decipher that as they are going by. He said that when ATVS and snowmobiles started 
using the trails they used education to get the information out and other trail users ended up enforcing 
it.  
  
Chair Anderson reiterated that EPAMD’s have to be allowed. Mr. Shelby said he wasn’t sure but that he 
thought if there was a demonstrated need to show they should be limited there could be some latitude 
to make create limitations, but it wouldn’t be easy. Chair Anderson said those are not the current 
problem. 
  
Commissioner Stewart said a big component is the education piece and if they agree that there will be 
multiple users on the trails at the same time then they need to get back to basic trail etiquette. He 
shared that trail etiquette signs in Livonia township on the Great Northern Trail are good, and we need 
to include that in our education component.  
  
Mr. Shelby listed some examples of trail etiquette and pointed out that it is part of the education piece 
that many cities are using.  
  
Chair Anderson asked the Commissioners if they could all agree that all classes of the e-bikes should be 
allowed with a 20-mph speed limit to be consistent with Sherburne County. Mr. Shelby asked Chair 
Anderson for confirmation that they would be starting with allowing all three classes of e-bikes but with 
a speed limit of 20-mph. Mr. Stremcha said that another recommendation could be a trailer placed out 
on the trail that could help manage the enforcement by posting the speed with the flashers etc. He said 
it could be moved around to different trails.  
  
Chair Anderson said that he doesn’t want any bikes allowed on the green trails. He asked what 
everyone thought about the mountain bike trails since they are different. Mr. Shelby asked Mr. Burchill 
what he is seeing at other parks as far as hard regulations. Mr. Burchill said most parks are sticking with 
class one e-bikes only with pedal assistance and no throttle. He said it is hard to damage a trail with a 
pedal assisted e-bike. He said a class two e-bike with a throttle could damage the trails. Mr. Burchill said 
MORC approves all three classes of e-bikes on the mountain bike trails, but his personal opinion is to 
allow the class one e-bikes only because of the twisting of the trails.  
  
Chair Anderson confirmed that everyone agreed that class one, two and three bikes will be allowed on 
paved trails, class one bikes will be allowed on mountain bike trails and no bikes will be allowed on 
green trails. 
  
Chair Anderson then asked what everyone’s thoughts were about the motorized items on the lower 
part of his list. Mr. Shelby reviewed the details of the slides describing motorized foot scooters. Some 
of the Commissioners and staff said they are seeing a significant increase in usage of these around the 
city. Mr. Shelby said he thinks it is important to consider how an ordinance would be enforced if the 
scooters were restricted.  
  
Chair Anderson said that if a walkway is paved it is a trail and if it is concrete it is defined as a sidewalk. 
He said he believes that scooter riders should have helmets on if they are under 18. Commissioner 
Niziolek pointed out that they should be talking about trails since that is their jurisdiction. Mr. Shelby 
said he believes the only time they can be on sidewalks if they are pulling up at home. Commissioner 
Loidolt asked where they are going to stop with this as far as having too many restrictions. He said he 
doesn’t have a problem with these, but he wants to focus on trails and not sidewalks. Commissioner 
Stewart pointed out that according to the state of Minnesota the motorized foot scooters are treated 

DRAFT

Page 6 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 6 of 10 

the same as bicycles.  
  
Commissioner Nizolek arrived at this point (7:36p.m.) and said that the fact that these are motorized 
foot scooters and human propulsion doesn’t exist, these are just little power machines. What is the 
essence of our parks from a recreation perspective? The scooters just don’t fit into our present view of 
what trails are used for. What he sees from the motorized scooters is that kids just jump on them 
quickly to get somewhere. 
  
Commissioner Stewart pointed out that the new law treats motorized foot scooters as bicycles, so 
they have the same rights as bike riders. Chair Anderson said we are living in an AI world, and he 
doesn’t like it, but he doesn’t know what they can do about it. He asked if this is a fluid document. 
  
Mr. Shelby said that fluid is a good description of this entire discussion. Commissioner Goodwin said 
that she thinks they have a pretty good idea of what the state of MN says about this subject as well as 
Sherburne County. She believes that once they get through the next three to five years, they can 
evaluate what changes may be needed.  
  
Mr. Shelby said that he thinks that as defined by the state a motorized foot scooter is not to exceed 15 
miles per hour and is held up by the rules of the road. Chair Anderson read the rules from 2020 online 
about where a motorized foot scooter may operate. Commissioner Varty asked for clarification that a 
scooter can have the capability to go 30 miles per hour, but the rider just can’t ride it faster than 15 
mph. Mr. Shelby said he believes that is correct. 
  
Chair Anderson stated that the motorized scooters can go on paved trails only and same with the 
EPAMD’s and motorized foot scooters. He also stated again that at Hillside Park they will allow class 
one e-bikes only.  
  
Mr. Burchill said that educating the public will help a lot. He gets a lot of questions about what bikes are 
allowed at Hillside Park. He said that the mountain bike volunteers at the park will help with 
enforcement too. Once everyone knows the rules, users point them out to other users. 
  
Commissioner Niziolek asked Mr. Burchill if his user groups would help with educating users out at 
Hillside Park. He clarified that no one from MORC is doing that but users tell other users. 
Commissioner Niziolek asked why the average user at Woodland Trails Regional Park can’t do this too. 
Chair Anderson and Commissioner Varty said once there is signage then users will inform other users 
as the word spreads. She said hopefully they will be civil to each other and inform each other. 
Mr. Shelby and Mr. Stremcha summarized what had been talked about so far in the meeting, so 
Commissioner Niziolek was able to be caught up.  
  
Mr. Shebly thanked Mr. Burchill for his work on the trails and help with the meeting. 
  

9. PARKS AND RECREATION MANAGER UPDATE 
  

 9.1 Parks and Recreation Manager Update 
 
 Mr. Shelby presented his report. 

  
He added that the new Activity Center Assistant did not start when planned. She declined the job on 
the same day that she started.  

DRAFT

Page 7 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 7 of 10 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  

11. MOTION TO ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 
 Moved by Commissioner Goodwin and seconded by Commissioner Fermoyle to adjourn 

the regular meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission at 8:01 p.m. Motion carried 
5-0.  
  
Commissioner Varty left at 8:01p.m. 

12. WORK SESSION  
  

 12.1 2026 Capital Improvement 
 
 Mr. Shelby reviewed the budget handouts which will be provided as an attachment to the minutes. He 

reviewed the park improvement fund first. He explained the recommendations that were determined 
following his meeting with Mr. Baas, the City of Elk River Park Maintenance Foreman.  
  
Mr. Shelby explained what a turf tank is. He shared that he and staff are working on creating a flag 
football program in the spring which will necessitate more lining of the fields. The manpower required 
to do this would be eased by the leasing of this machine. It would be leased for three years at the cost 
of $16,000 per year.  
  
Chair Anderson said that if this is the only way they are going to get it then should it come out of this 
fund. Mr. Stremcha said that it is up to the commission and what they recommend, but the general fund 
could also be an option. Commissioner Niziolek said that he thinks it seems like it should come out of a 
park’s maintenance type of fund, but he does think it should be pursued but find a different source of 
funding.  
  
Commissioner Goodwin asked what this machine is and if it is better to purchase or lease. Mr. Shelby 
said that this machine is typically leased because they are so expensive. Commissioner Goodwin also 
agrees that she thinks this falls into the park’s maintenance budget.  
  
Chair Anderson said that if this is an ongoing annual expense and saves on labor and is a piece of 
equipment that they are renting, then they should pursue it if it is the only way it is going to get done 
but it should be under an alternative funding source in future years. Commissioner Stewart asked Mr. 
Shelby if he knew how many hours in labor Mr. Baas thought he would save. Mr. Shelby said that is 
something he thinks Mr. Baas was working on but it can be used in any field and city wide so it would 
help with labor. Chair Anderson asked if they could change the paint and use it to stripe the trails. Mr. 
Shelby said he isn’t sure what all the capabilities are quite yet, but he can follow up with the company to 
clarify all of that. Commissioner Stewart said that if it is going to be an ongoing expense then they 
should find another way to pay for it other than the Parks and Recreation budget. 
  
Commissioner Niziolek said he wanted to say two things before he had to leave for the night. He thinks 
that the Ridgewood East court usage doesn’t warrant the cost of replacement because Salk Junior High 
School has a nicer court that is nearby. He thinks they should tear it out and not replace it. He thinks if 
they replace it, they would be wasting the $30,000. 
  
Commissioner Niziolek also thinks that they need to stripe the trails. He said that he is concerned 
there could be a bad collision at 20 mph. He thinks there will be serious injuries and maybe a death. He 

DRAFT

Page 8 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 8 of 10 

thinks they should stripe the trails at the same time as they are rolling the education piece about the 
out the e-bikes. He thinks it would create a visual to draw attention. Mr. Shelby asked for clarification 
that this would be done for directional purposes. Commissioner Niziolek said yes to primarily help 
avoid a head on collision. Commissioner Niziolek left at 8:19pm.  
  
Chair Anderson asked if there are other things that should be on this list. Mr. Shelby clarified that these 
items were the only things that he and Mr. Baas discussed and if the Commission would like to add 
additional items they can. Commissioner Goodwin asked what the WHHCA/ Friends of the Mississippi 
line item is. Mr. Shelby said that it is the Friends of the Mississippi River agreement to manage and work 
on the whole property.  
  
Commissioner Goodwin asked if there was an obligation for them to do anything with the newly 
acquired property at Camp Cozy. Commissioner Stewart said that there is a Master Plan for Camp 
Cozy, and the Friends of the Mississippi involved in it. Chair Anderson explained that was done before 
this property was acquired though and doesn’t affect the Maher Property. Chair Anderson suggested 
that we have a plan in the future to discuss the Maher property.  
  
Mr. Shelby said that for years they worked off a Capital Replacement Plan that was put together by 
former staff and is no longer valid. He is working with Mr. Stremcha, Mr. Femrite, the Public Works 
Director, and Mr. Baas to rebuild that plan, projecting a budget for the future. Chair Anderson said that 
staff will need to have input from the Commission for this as well. He said that they, as the 
Commission, come up with a concept and staff will come up with the reality. Commissioner Goodwin 
said she doesn’t feel like they have enough information to add anything to the list.  
  
Commissioner Loidolt said that the baseball fields in this city are in bad shape, and they are way behind 
in updating them, but he isn’t sure where money would come from for the plan they came up with. Mr. 
Shelby said the three things listed were definitive, but that doesn’t mean there aren’t going to be other 
things that come up in 2026. He said that they may end up needing some money for the master plan or 
a portion of it. Tonight is the night to come up with ideas to see if they can be added into the budget. 
  
Chair Anderson said that Mr. Burchill had shared with him prior to the meeting that he would like to 
have some money put in place for park improvements for Hillside Park without listing anything specific. 
Mr. Shelby said that they would need specifics to approve that versus a random amount that is open-
ended. Chair Anderson said that one thing that came up in conversation was a motorized wheelbarrow. 
Mr. Stremcha suggested that Mr. Burchill explore what he has on his wish list and then it can be put on 
the regular agenda for next month’s meeting. 
  
Mr. Stremcha said that he thinks the $50,000 in the budget for the master plan should be carried 
forward to 2026 and Chair Anderson agreed. Chair Anderson also said that they need to think about 
Scout Island access in the future.  
  
Commissioner Stewart asked if there is an ATV replacement plan. Chair Anderson said that it would fall 
under equipment budget per a discussion he had with Mitch Litfin, the Public Works Supervisor. Chair 
Anderson said both Woodland Trails Regional Park and William H. Houlton Conservation Area have 
older ATVs that need to be replaced. He said Mr. Litfin told him they were removed from the 2026 
budget and that there isn’t anything in the near future for replacement. Commissioner Stewart said they 
are so old they can’t find replacement parts. Chair Anderson said it would be nice to have a side-by-
side when they have to go out for projects and have multiple people who need to ride together.  
  

DRAFT

Page 9 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 9 of 10 

Chair Anderson said it would be nice to have a cab in the winter, especially when using the rollers to 
prep the ski trails out at Woodland Trails Regional Park. He said they currently use the ATVs to pull 
the rollers. He said years ago they used to walk the trails and pull them behind, putting hundreds of 
hours. He said it would be an especially useful tool to have a new ATV or side-by-side in the budget. 
  
Chair Anderson said last year they ran out of wood chips for Woodland trails, and they did this year 
too. He likes to do about 20 loads a year and this year only did about 8. Mr. Stremcha asked if that is a 
maintenance thing. Chair Anderson said yes, but they are falling behind. Chair Anderson said that one 
load is about $100 for four yards. He said they are extremely useful tools but they only last about three 
years on the trails.  
  
Commissioner Loidolt said that it should come out of misc. projects. Mr. Stremcha said that could 
come out of other funds and is discretionary funding. He said that staff can make the decision on 
something like that. Chair Anderson said he has been told that there isn’t money available in the past 
two years when he has asked staff. He said that the City of Elk River loads the trucks for them and then 
volunteers go out every week with two trucks starting in late August. Mr. Stremcha said that they are 
discussing improvements tonight and this is a maintenance item.  
  
Commissioner Loidolt left at 8:35pm. 
  
Chair Anderson asked if everyone is okay with the $50,000 for the master plan being moved to next 
year. He also asked the commissioners and staff what their thoughts were on Ridgewood East Park. Mr. 
Shelby said that Mr. Baas said that it needed to be updated and resurfaced. Chair Anderson said that his 
observations are that it isn’t used. Mr. Shelby said that it is something they would include in the survey 
when it comes time to do that region. Councilmember Grupa said move it forward and wait until we 
do the neighborhood survey for that area to determine. They all seemed to agree to move forward.  
  
Mr. Shelby then reviewed the park dedication fund. Mr. Stremcha said that Bradford Park will also 
potentially come online in 2026 for a cost share for the north half of the trail. Joe said that something 
will start to get phased in. Chair Anderson suggested a budget placeholder for Bradford Park in 2026 in 
the amount of $60,000. Chair Anderson asked if County Rd 44 was on there. Mr. Shelby asked when it 
was originally, and Chair Anderson said 2024. The commissioners said that they would like an update 
on this.  
  
Mr. Shelby said that there will also be reimbursement from the mega loop trail. He thinks it is a 
significant amount from park dedication in 2024. That money will build this account significantly. He is 
not sure when it will be coming yet. 
  

13. MOTION TO ADJOURN 
   

Moved by Commissioner Goodwin and seconded by Commissioner Fermoyle to adjourn 
the work session of the Parks and Recreation Commission at 8:40 p.m. Motion carried 4-0. 
Minutes prepared by Dawn Larson. 

  

       

DRAFT

Page 10 of 34



 
 

Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
October 8, 2025 
--------- 

Page 10 of 10 

 

 
__________________ 
Dave Anderson, Chair 

 
___________________ 
Tina Allard, City Clerk 

 

DRAFT

Page 11 of 34



The Elk River Vision 

A welcoming community with revolutionary and spirited resourcefulness, exceptional service, and community 
engagement that encourages and inspires prosperity 

 

Request for Action 

 
To 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

Item Number 
6.1 

  
Meeting Date 
November 12, 2025 

Prepared By 
Jeff Shelby, Recreation Manager 

  
Item Description 
Perkins Acres - Park Dedication 

Reviewed by 
Jeff Shelby   
Joe Stremcha   

 
Action Requested 
Recommend, by motion, park dedication for Perkins Acres be paid in cash for one single family parcel, at the 
applicable rate at the time of recording and a trail access easement with the final location and width to be 
determined by the City Council and staff. 
  
 
Background/Discussion 
The subject property is zoned Single Family Residential (R1a), which establishes a minimum lot size 
requirement of 2.5 acres. The applicant is proposing to develop their one existing 5-acre parcel into two 
parcels, along with public right-of-way. 
 
The Master Trail Plan identifies a conceptual trail connection near 196th Avenue, linking Lander Street to 
approximately 180 undeveloped acres to the west. Based on the location of existing wetlands, anticipated 
driveways, and the goal of minimizing impacts to private properties, the Parks and Recreation Commission, 
during consideration of the M&S Estates plat (P 18-05), recommended that a future trail would be best 
located along the northern side of the wetland complex. An easement along the north side of 196th Avenue 
would accommodate this alignment. 
 
Staff recommend that the Commission support establishing a trail access easement, with the final location and 
width to be determined by the City Council and staff. 
 
  
 
Financial Impact 
Park dedication fees will be deposited into the Park Dedication Fund. 
 
Mission/Policy/Goal 
Support the growth and development of the community. 
 
Attachments 
1. Trail Master Plan 
 

Page 12 of 34



 

 

Page 13 of 34



Page 14 of 34



The Elk River Vision 

A welcoming community with revolutionary and spirited resourcefulness, exceptional service, and community 
engagement that encourages and inspires prosperity 

 

Request for Action 

 
To 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

Item Number 
6.2 

  
Meeting Date 
November 12, 2025 

Prepared By 
Jeff Shelby, Recreation Manager 

  
Item Description 
2026 Commission Meeting Dates 

Reviewed by 
Jeff Shelby   
Joe Stremcha   

 
Action Requested 
Recommend, by motion, the 2026 commission meeting dates. 
  
 
Background/Discussion 
The commission meets the second Wednesday of each month. The proposed 2026 calendar reflects this, with 
one exception. The second Wednesday in November falls on Veterans Day. Wednesday November 4 is the 
suggested alternative date. 
 
Financial Impact 
None 
 
Mission/Policy/Goal 
Opportunity to live, work, and play. 
 
Attachments 
1. 2026 Boards and Commissions Meetings 
 
 

Page 15 of 34



Advisory Board/Commission Meeting Calendar2026

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30
31 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
29 30 31 28 29 30 27 28 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

EDA (5:30 p.m.) and City Council (6:00 p.m. or after EDA mtg) Planning Commission - 6:30 p.m. 
Heritage Preservation Commission - 6:00 p.m. Utilities Commission - 3:30 p.m.
HRA (5:30 p.m.) and City Council (6:30 p.m.) City Council
Community Event Center Commision - 6:30 p.m. Utilities Commission/Parks and Recreation Commission
Parks and Recreation Commission - 6:30 p.m. 

Holidays
Jan 1 - New Year's Day observed Sept 7- Labor Day
Jan 19 - Martin Luther King Jr. Day Nov 11 - Veterans Day observed
Feb 16 - Presidents' Day Nov 26 - Thanksgiving
May 25 - Memorial Day Nov 27 - Day after Thanksgiving
June 19 - Junteenth Dec 24 & 25 - Christmas holidays observed
July 3 - Independence Day Observed

Multipurpose Facility Commission meets at Furniture and Things Community Event Center, 1000 School St
Utilities Commission meets at ERMU, 13069 Orono Parkway
Unless otherwise noted, all other meetings are held at Elk River City Hall, 13065 Orono Parkway

NOTE: ALL DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

Page 16 of 34



The Elk River Vision 

A welcoming community with revolutionary and spirited resourcefulness, exceptional service, and community 
engagement that encourages and inspires prosperity 

 

Request for Action 

 
To 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

Item Number 
6.3 

  
Meeting Date 
November 12, 2025 

Prepared By 
Jeff Shelby, Recreation Manager 

  
Item Description 
Bleachers Purchase for Plants & Things Athletic 
Complex 

Reviewed by 
Jeff Shelby   
Joe Stremcha   

 
Action Requested 
Recommend, by motion, that Park Improvement Funds be used to purchase new additional bleachers for the 
PT Complex. 
  
 
Background/Discussion 
The Parks and Recreation Department would like to add an additional set of bleachers out at the Plants and 
Things Athletic Complex, due to increasing usage. With increasing prices due to aluminum tariffs, our vendor 
has indicated that waiting to purchase could result in a much higher price. In the interest of being efficient 
with the Park Improvement Fund, staff would like to move forward with the purchase immediately. The quote 
is attached for review. 
 
Financial Impact 
Cost of bleachers would be paid for out of Park Improvement Fund 
 
Mission/Policy/Goal 
Responsible for every dollar - good stewards. 
 
Attachments 
1. ELK RIVER 10-17-25 
2. Bleachers 
 
 

Page 17 of 34



Quoted To: Ship To:

STREET DEPT - ELK RIVER

19000 PROCTOR ROAD

ELK RIVER, MN  55330

CITY OF ELK RIVER

13065 ORONO PARKWAY

ELK RIVER, MN  55330

Page: 1

Quote Number:

Quote Date:

Salesperson:

Customer Number:

0157823

10/17/2025

0004062

HOUSE ACCOUNT

11/21/2025Quote Expiration Date:

19784 Kenrick Avenue

Lakeville,MN 55044

(952) 884-7300

www.efa-mn.com

SALES QUOTE

Ship VIA

DIRECT

F.O.B. Terms

NET 30

Item Code Unit Price AmountOrderedItem Description

BLEACHER

Confirm To:

WARREN 763-635-1159

Customer P.O.

SIGN EACH 10,915.00 10,915.000 1.00 Non-Elevated 8 Row x 21’ 

Aluminum Bleacher. (Per 

Attached Drawing)

SIGN EACH 491.25 491.250 1.00 Aluminum 3 tier Aisle 

Handrail w/ Hardware

Material Lead Time: 9-11 Weeks

ESTIMATED SHIPPING ONLY

Net Quote: 11,406.25 

Freight: 1,562.50 

Sales Tax:

Less Deposit: 0.00 

Quote Balance: 12,968.75 

0.00 

12,968.75 Quote Total:

THIS QUOTE EXPIRES 15 DAYS FROM DATE OF ISSUE.

To accept this quote please sign here: 

Special order items are not returnable. Returns and/or cancelled orders may be subject to a restocking/cancellation charge. A return 

authorization number is required prior to returning any product. No returns accepted after 60 days from date of original invoice date.

Page 18 of 34



Page 19 of 34



The Elk River Vision 

A welcoming community with revolutionary and spirited resourcefulness, exceptional service, and community 
engagement that encourages and inspires prosperity 

 

Request for Action 

 
To 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

Item Number 
6.4 

  
Meeting Date 
November 12, 2025 

Prepared By 
Jeff Shelby, Recreation Manager 

  
Item Description 
E-bike and Electric Device Ordinance 

Reviewed by 
Jeff Shelby   
Joe Stremcha   

 
Action Requested 
Recommend, by motion, ordinance language related to e-bike usage for the city council to consider. 
  
 
Background/Discussion 
The commission discussed the usage of e-bikes and other electric powered devices during the October 
meeting. Staff has taken the recommendations from that discussion and drafted potential ordinance language 
to present to the city council. 
 
Financial Impact 
Cost of signage required to inform the public. 
 
Mission/Policy/Goal 
Appropriately govern in an ever-changing environment. 
 
Attachments 
1. Proposed Ordinance - Electric Devices 
 
 

Page 20 of 34



Proposed Ordinance 

Electric powered bicycles and electric powered assistive personal devices are 
prohibited from being used in excess of 20 mph on any paved, grass, or dirt trail 
within city limits. Any motorized bicycle (commonly referred to as an e-moto) that 
that does not have operational pedals and is capable of a speed in excess of 28 
mph is prohibited from use on any paved, grass, or dirt trail within city limits.  

In Hillside Park, Class 1 electric assisted bicycles are allowed. All other types of 
electric powered bicycles or devices are prohibited. 

Page 21 of 34



The Elk River Vision 

A welcoming community with revolutionary and spirited resourcefulness, exceptional service, and community 
engagement that encourages and inspires prosperity 

 

Request for Action 

 
To 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

Item Number 
7.1 

  
Meeting Date 
November 12, 2025 

Prepared By 
Jeff Shelby, Recreation Manager 

  
Item Description 
Safety at Athletic Complexes 

Reviewed by 
Jeff Shelby   
Joe Stremcha   

 
Action Requested 
Discuss potential safety precautions at athletic complexes. 
  
 
Background/Discussion 
The Plants and Things Recreation Complex naming rights sponsor has asked that the commission discuss 
increasing physical safety precautions at our athletic complexes, particularly fields that might be vulnerable to 
having a vehicle drive onto them. 
 
Financial Impact 
Dependent upon action taken. 
 
Mission/Policy/Goal 
Meet changing needs - agile. 
 
Attachments 
1. Como Park Athletic Fields 
 
 

Page 22 of 34



Brianna Kelly 2025-07-28T21:04:21Z

Rock barriers go up at Como Park athletic fields after

spring vehicle incident

www.msn.com/en-us/news/us/rock-barriers-go-up-at-como-park-athletic-fields-after-spring-vehicle-incident/ar-

AA1JsKGr?ocid=socialshare

New safety measures have gone up around Como Regional Park's athletic fields.

St. Paul Parks and Recreation recently spent about $117,000 to install rock barriers and

fortified poles at McMurray Athletic Fields in an effort to prevent vehicles from accessing the

soccer and baseball fields. A spokesperson tells Bring Me The News that they're a

"precautionary measure" stemming from an incident in the spring.

A driver drove onto the park's soccer fields during a game in April. No one was injured, but

the city wants to make sure it never happens again.

1/2Page 23 of 34

https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/us/rock-barriers-go-up-at-como-park-athletic-fields-after-spring-vehicle-incident/ar-AA1JsKGr?ocid=socialshare
http://www.bringmethenews.com/
https://kstp.com/kstp-news/top-news/police-investigating-soccer-field-car-incident-in-st-paul/


"We prioritize the safety of our park users, and although this is not something that has

previously occurred at athletic fields within our system, we wanted to ensure that we don't

experience an issue like this again," a St. Paul spokesperson said in an emailed statement.

McMurray Athletic Fields is located in the southeast corner of Como Regional Park off of

Lexington Avenue. Its artificial turf fields host adult and youth leagues for baseball, softball

and soccer.

Como Regional Park is one of the busiest parks in the Twin Cities, with an estimated 2

million visitors in 2024.

Related: These were the most-visited regional parks in the Twin Cities in 2024

2/2Page 24 of 34

https://bringmethenews.com/minnesota-lifestyle/these-were-the-most-visited-regional-parks-in-the-twin-cities-in-2024


The Elk River Vision 

A welcoming community with revolutionary and spirited resourcefulness, exceptional service, and community 
engagement that encourages and inspires prosperity 

 

Request for Action 

 
To 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

Item Number 
7.2 

  
Meeting Date 
November 12, 2025 

Prepared By 
Jeff Shelby, Recreation Manager 

  
Item Description 
Park Usage Survey Results 

Reviewed by 
Jeff Shelby   
Joe Stremcha   

 
Action Requested 
Discuss results from Park Usage Survey in Region 1. 
  
 
Background/Discussion 
The Park Usage Survey was sent out to residents in Region 1 via postcard. The survey was open from 
September 25 to October 13. Staff will present the results. 
 
Financial Impact 
The survey cost $475.80 to send to residents. 
 
Mission/Policy/Goal 
Meet changing needs - agile.  
 
Attachments 
1. Park Usage Survey Region 1 Results 
 
 

Page 25 of 34



Page 26 of 34



Page 27 of 34



Page 28 of 34



Page 29 of 34



Page 30 of 34



Page 31 of 34



 

Memorandum 
 

       
 
 

   
 

 

To:  Parks and Recreation Commission  
 
From:   Jeff Shelby, Parks and Recreation Manager 
 
Date:  November 12, 2025 
 
Subject:   Parks and Recreation Staff Report 

Senior Activity Center  
As of November 4, a total of 40 memberships have been sold for 2026. At least 20 of these are first-time 
members. 

Our next Senior Activity Center assistant is pending hire by the city council on November 17 and has a 
tentative start date of November 24. We’re excited for this position to be filled as it has been vacant since 
September 12.  

Larry Macgruder recently joined as a volunteer greeter on Thursday mornings. The Senior Activity Center 
now has four greeters and a total of 19 volunteers serving in various roles. 

On October 15, the Senior Center partnered with Thryve (a branch of Guardian Angels Senior Services) to 
host a Vendor and Expert Fair. The event was well attended and received very positive feedback from 
participants. 

The October trip to Osceola for a train ride and visit to an apple orchard was another success, quickly 
filling to capacity and generating a waitlist. 

On November 4, the Center hosted Coffee and Conversation with Crime Prevention Specialist Officer Jeff 
Garcia. The event was very well received, and this program will now be offered on the first Tuesday of 
each month going forward. 

Our membership drive and open house will be held on Monday December 8 from 10 A.M. to 12 P.M. 

The Annual Holiday Music and Luncheon Event will be held Monday December 15. This year’s 
entertainment will take place in the Flex Space at the FT Center, with lunch served in the Senior Center, 
catered by Overlook Catering. 

 

Page 32 of 34



   
 

   
 

 

Community Events Update 

The Downtown Trick or Treat event was a great success and a wonderful collaboration between the city, 
DERBA, and many local businesses and community groups. We greatly appreciate everyone’s partnership 
in making this annual event such a highlight for our community. 

Looking ahead to the holidays, we plan to have the Christmas tree installed this Friday. DERBA is 
generously covering the cost of professional lighting for the trees in Rivers Edge and the main Christmas 
tree. The city will provide the tree and additional decor downtown.  

The annual Tree Lighting Celebration will take place on Thursday, November 20. Activities for kids will run 
from 4–6 p.m., and the official tree lighting festivities will begin at 5 p.m. with caroling and a bell choir 
performance provided by Elk River Lutheran Church. The Elk River Fire Department will also be in 
attendance, collecting toys for their annual holiday toy drive. 

Children can drop off letters to Santa in the mailbox by the tree. Letters submitted by December 14 with 
a return address will receive a personalized reply from Santa. 

DERBA will be hosting Santa this year on Small Business Saturday (November 28). 

Our Winter Walks program began this past Monday at Woodland Trails Regional Park and will continue 
on the second Monday of each month from 6–7 p.m. through February. We extend our thanks to the 
dedicated volunteers at Woodland Trails who groom the walking paths for the winter season. Last year, 
attendance ranged from 25–75 participants, many of whom shared that it was their first time exploring 
the trails in winter. This program aims to provide a fun and relaxing way for community members to 
enjoy the outdoors during the colder months. 

The Indoor Farmers Market season kicked off on November 6 and will be held on the first Thursday of 
each month through May (note: in January, the market will take place on January 8 due to the holiday). 
The market runs from 3–6 p.m. at the Elk River YMCA. 

Sports/Programs  
We have received a license to operate a youth NFL Flag Football League. We are working closely with the 
Elk River Youth Football Association for input and potential collaboration. We intend for this program to 
be held in both spring and fall, run approximately 6 weeks long, and one day per week. We envision this 
to be a very popular program and will allow us to expand our program offerings.  
 
Winter adult league registration is open. Leagues include Women’s Volleyball, Co-Ed Volleyball, and Men’s 
Basketball.  
 
 
 

Page 33 of 34



   
 

   
 

 
 
Fields 
The 2025 field use season officially wrapped up on Sunday, October 19. We collected $45,664 for field 
use. *Please note that the total dollar amount does include lights and reimbursements for bathroom 
cleaning for tournaments. *   
 
At the PT Complex, we were able to replace the backstop fencing on all six fields and pour two large 
cement pads for bleachers on fields 5 and 6. This was made possible because of the sponsorship dollars 
from our agreement with Plants and Things. Other projects on the list for 2026 include some netting over 
the pump area, bullpens, and bleachers on field 6. These are projects that our users have indicated are 
very important to have for the continued success of their programs. 
 
  

Page 34 of 34


	1. Call Meeting to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Consider Agenda
	4. Consider Minutes
	1 10-08-2025 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes
	10-08-2025 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes (2)


	5. Open Forum
	6. Action Items
	1 Perkins Acres - Park Dedication
	Perkins Acres-Park Dedicatin
	Trail Master Plan

	2 2026 Commission Meeting Dates
	2026 Commission Meeting Dates
	2026 Boards and Commissions Meetings

	3 Bleachers Purchase for Plants & Things Athletic Co
	Bleachers Purchase for PT Complex
	ELK RIVER 10-17-25
	Bleachers

	4 E-bike and Electric Device Ordinance
	E-bike and Electric Device Ordinance
	Proposed Ordinance - Electric Devices


	7. Discussion Items
	1 Safety at Athletic Complexes
	Safety at Athletic Complexes
	Como Park Athletic Fields

	2 Park Usage Survey Results
	Park Usage Survery Results
	Park Usage Survey Region 1 Results


	8. Parks and Recreation Manager Update
	1 Parks and Recreation Manager Update
	11-12-25 Parks and Recreation Manager Update


	9. Announcements
	10. Motion to Adjourn



